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RE: Takoma Junction 

SHARED PARKING STUDY 

Takoma Park, Maryland 

Our Job No.: 2016-0409 

Dear Jingjing: 

The Traffic Group, Inc. has had an opportunity to conduct a Shared Parking Study for 

the proposed underground parking garage planned for the Takoma Junction project 

in Takoma Park, Maryland.  It is our understanding that this site is planned to be 

developed with 18,772 SF of office space, 10,182 SF of retail space and 9,365 SF of 

restaurant space, of which 30% or 2,810 SF will be a commercial kitchen which has no 

parking requirements.   

As required by the Montgomery County Zoning Code, we have conducted this Shared 

Parking Analysis using the parking requirements outlined in the Zoning Code (copy 

attached) for the appropriate uses planned on this site.  This site is located in a 

Reduced Parking Area.  The methodology behind this analysis was obtained from the 

Urban Land Institute (ULI) Shared Parking Model (2nd Edition) as required by the 

zoning code.   

The ULI methodology breaks each of the proposed uses down between parking 

required for employees and client parking.  While the number of spaces required for 

each particular use, as outlined in the Zoning Code, is different from that which is 

recommended in the ULI document, we have broken the parking requirements based 

on the County Code to determine the total number of spaces needed.  Then 

determined the number of spaces required for the clients and the employees for each 

use based on the proportion as shown in the ULI Shared Parking document.  Applying 

this methodology, shown on Exhibit 1 is the number of parking spaces required for 

clients and employees for each of the three uses planned on the subject site.  Based 

on these calculations, it was determined that the subject site would be required to 

provide 100 parking spaces.  The first adjustment, as shown on Exhibit 1, is the 

monthly variation for each of the uses planned on this site.  It should be noted that 

the monthly demand is also divided into clients and employees.   

A review of Exhibit 1 indicates that the maximum monthly demand for the weekdays 

occur in December.  During the month of December there is no reduction in the 

demand as a result of shared parking and 100 spaces would be required.   
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The next step, which is shown on Exhibit 2, is to determine the peak hourly demand for the 

weekdays.  As shown on Exhibit 2, the maximum hourly demand on a weekday occurs between 

1 AM to 2 PM and shows that 93 spaces would be required.  This would represent a reduction of 

7 spaces over what is normally required by the Zoning Code. 

 

There are two other factors that could be considered in order to obtain a credit for additional 

reduction in parking spaces for the subject site.  The first would be the provision of a Car-Share 

located near an entrance which would result in a reduction of three required parking spaces.  The 

second reduction would be if a Bike-Share facility with a minimum of ten spaces were to be 

provided, which would allow for an additional three vehicle reduction in the parking required.  

Because of the limited amount of parking planned for the subject facility, it would appear that it 

would be more beneficial to provide the parking spaces than to try to achieve any additional 

reduction in the number of spaces needed on the site.   

 

Therefore, based on the procedures required by the Montgomery County Zoning Code, we have 

determined that the maximum parking demand, when taken in to consideration the Shared 

Parking Analysis, indicates that a minimum of 93 spaces will be required to meet the projected 

demand for the subject site.   

 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.   

 

Sincerely,  

 

 
Glenn E. Cook 

Senior Vice President 

 

GEC:mlj 
(F:\2016\2016-0409_Takoma Junction\DOCS\CORRESP\ANALYST\Ltr_Shared Parking Study_Liu-rev2.docx) 
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Land Use Layout Parameters: Parking Spaces:
Office = Office Client = Office Client = 3

Retail = Employee = Employee = 35

Restaurant = Retail Client = Retail Client = 29

Employee = Employee = 7

Restaurant Client = Restaurant Client = 22

Employee = Employee = 4

TOTAL = 100

client emp. client emp. client emp. client emp. client emp. client emp.

January 100% 100% 3 35 56% 80% 16 6 85% 95% 19 4 83

February 100% 100% 3 35 57% 80% 17 6 86% 95% 19 4 84

March 100% 100% 3 35 64% 80% 19 6 95% 100% 21 4 88

April 100% 100% 3 35 63% 80% 18 6 92% 100% 20 4 86

May 100% 100% 3 35 66% 80% 19 6 96% 100% 21 4 88

June 100% 100% 3 35 67% 80% 19 6 95% 100% 21 4 88

July 95% 95% 3 33 64% 80% 19 6 98% 100% 22 4 87

August 95% 95% 3 33 69% 80% 20 6 99% 100% 22 4 88

September 100% 100% 3 35 64% 80% 19 6 91% 100% 20 4 87

October 100% 100% 3 35 66% 80% 19 6 96% 100% 21 4 88

November 100% 100% 3 35 72% 90% 21 6 93% 100% 20 4 89

December 100% 100% 3 35 100% 100% 29 7 100% 100% 22 4 100

Late Dec. 80% 100% 2 35 80% 90% 23 6 95% 100% 21 4 91

Maximum Monthly Demand for Weekdays = 

Myc, 160409\REV5\Shared Parking 2nd edition - by right plan 2020-7-16.xls-Monthlyweekday, F07/16/20 Page 1 of 2

Notes: 

1. This analysis was conducted using the methodology described in Shared Parking, 2nd Edition, Urban Land Institute.  Parking requirement rates were based on Montgomery 

County Zoning Code Chapter 59.

2. The total square footage for restaurant use is 9,365 sq. ft. including 30% or 2,810 sq. ft. of commercial kitchen. The remaining 6,555 sq. ft. was used for parking calculation.

Month

Retail

Percent util. Needed spaces

0.68 ps/ksf GLA

10,182 sq ft

18,772 sq ft

1.84 ps/ksf GFA

6,555 sq ft 2.82 ps/ksf GLA

TotalPercent util. Needed spaces

EXHIBIT 1
MONTHLY VARIATIONS TO DETERMINE

PEAK MONTHLY DEMAND FOR WEEKDAYS

3.43 ps/ksf GLA

0.57 ps/ksf GLA

0.16 ps/ksf GFA

Percent util. Needed spaces

Office Restaurant

100 parking spaces
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Land Use Layout Parameters:
Office = Office Client = Office Client = 3

Retail = Employee = Employee = 35

Restaurant = Retail Client = Retail Client = 29

Employee = Employee = 7

Restaurant Client = Restaurant Client = 22

Employee = Employee = 4

TOTAL = 100

Highest Monthly Demand - December 

Weekday

client emp. client emp. client emp. client emp. client emp. client emp.

7:00 AM 1% 30% 0 11 5% 15% 1 1 50% 75% 11 3 27

8:00 AM 20% 75% 1 26 15% 40% 4 3 60% 90% 13 4 51

9:00 AM 60% 95% 2 33 30% 75% 9 5 75% 90% 17 4 70

10:00 AM 100% 100% 3 35 55% 85% 16 6 85% 100% 19 4 83

11:00 AM 45% 100% 1 35 75% 95% 22 7 90% 100% 20 4 89

12:00 PM 15% 90% 0 32 90% 100% 26 7 100% 100% 22 4 91

1:00 PM 45% 90% 1 32 100% 100% 29 7 90% 100% 20 4 93

2:00 PM 100% 100% 3 35 100% 100% 29 7 50% 100% 11 4 89

3:00 PM 45% 100% 1 35 100% 100% 29 7 45% 75% 10 3 85

4:00 PM 15% 90% 0 32 95% 100% 28 7 45% 75% 10 3 80

5:00 PM 10% 50% 0 18 85% 95% 25 7 75% 95% 17 4 71

6:00 PM 5% 25% 0 9 80% 95% 23 7 80% 95% 18 4 61

7:00 PM 2% 10% 0 4 75% 95% 22 7 80% 95% 18 4 55

8:00 PM 1% 7% 0 2 65% 90% 19 6 80% 95% 18 4 49

9:00 PM 0% 3% 0 1 50% 75% 15 5 60% 80% 13 3 37

10:00 PM 0% 1% 0 0 30% 40% 9 3 55% 65% 12 3 27

11:00 PM 0% 0% 0 0 10% 15% 3 1 50% 65% 11 3 18

12:00 AM 0% 0% 0 0 0% 0% 0 0 25% 35% 6 1 7

Maximum Weekday Hourly Demand = 

Myc, 160409\REV5\shared parking 2nd edition - rev - by right plan.xls-Weekday, F02/13/19 Page 2 of 2

Notes: 

1. This analysis was conducted using the methodology described in Shared Parking, 2nd Edition, Urban Land Institute.  Parking requirement rates were based on Montgomery County Zoning 

Code Chapter 59.

2. The total square footage for restaurant use is 9,365 sq. ft. including 30% or 2,810 sq. ft. of commercial kitchen. The remaining 6,555 sq. ft. was used for parking calculation.

EXHIBIT 2

SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS

PEAK HOURLY DEMAND FOR WEEKDAYS

Parking Spaces based on Highest Monthly 

Demand (from Exhibit 1):

Restaurant

Percent util. Needed spacesNeeded spaces

0.68 /ksf GLA

6,555 sq ft 2.82 /ksf GLA

3.43 /ksf GLA

18,772 sq ft

10,182 sq ft

0.16 /ksf GFA

1.84 /ksf GFA

Total

Retail

Percent util.

93 parking spaces

0.57 /ksf GLA

Time of Day

Office

Percent util. Needed spaces
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